Public Document Pack

Simon W. Baker B.Ed MBA MISPAL
Chief Executive

LICENSING & REGULATORY COMMITTEE AGENDA
Date:

Friday, 29 November 2019

Time:

10.00 am

Venue:

The Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek
21 November 2019

PART 1
1.

Apologies for absence, if any.

2.

Minutes of the Meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory Committee held on 28 June
2019 (Pages 3 - 6)

3.

Urgent items of business, if any.

4.

Declarations of interest, if any.

5.

The Air Quality (Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles Database)(England and Wales)
Regulations 2019 (Pages 7 - 30)

6.

Intoxicated Campaign (Pages 31 - 34)

7.

Review of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations (Pages 35 - 52)

8.

Licensing Enforcement Activity (Pages 53 - 56)

9.

Chair/Members' Questions/Issues.

10.

Date of Next Meeting - 6 March 2020

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Membership of Licensing & Regulatory Committee
Councillor L D Lea (Chair)
Councillor I Lawson (Vice-Chair)
Councillor J Aberley
Councillor B Cawley
Councillor E Fallows
Councillor B A Hughes
Councillor B Johnson
Councillor T McNicol
Councillor I Plant
Councillor D Shaw
Councillor L Swindlehurst
Councillor I Whitehouse

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

LICENSING & REGULATORY COMMITTEE MEETING
Minutes
FRIDAY, 28 JUNE 2019
PRESENT:

Councillor I Lawson (Vice-Chair)
Councillors
J Aberley,
B Cawley,
E Fallows,
B A Hughes,
B Johnson, T McNicol, L Swindlehurst and I Whitehouse

IN ATTEDNANCE:

S Bradbury
A Patterson
M Trillo
P Trafford

APOLOGIES:
1

Licensing Officer
Head of Environmental Health
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring
Officer
Democratic Services Officer

Councillors L D Lea, I Plant and D Shaw

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LICENSING AND REGULATORY
COMMITTEE HELD ON 1 MARCH 2019
RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing and Regulatory
Committee held on 1 March 2019 be APPROVED as a correct
record and signed by the Chair.

2

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY.
There were no urgent items.

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY.
There were no declarations made.

4

LICENSING ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY
Alicia Patterson – Head of Environmental Health – presented the report to members
reflecting the period February 2019 to July 2019. The Licensing Service had
engaged in a number of enforcement actions, involving reactive responses to
complaints and intelligence received from the public and partner agencies as well as
proactive compliance checks. The actions were detailed as follows:Enforcement Activity
20 Letters / e-mails to Taxi Drivers regarding the Safeguarding Courses and the
BTEC course requirements.
2 Pub Watch Meetings (Leek).
10 Joint licensing visits with Staffordshire Fire & Rescue.
1 Joint inspection with EHO (following complaints).
2 Multi agency visits with Immigration/Police/FARS.
Page 3
1

Licensing & Regulatory Committee - 28 June 2019
13 Licensing inspections.
1 Application for a Time Limited Premises Licence.
1 Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence.
97 Temporary Event Notices (TENs).
29 Late TENs.
5 TENs No Alcohol.
1 Late TEN No Alcohol.
By way of further clarification, photographs of various licensing contravention
situations were shown via a Powerpoint Presentation on the screens to illustrate
some of the points made in the report. The photographs centred around areas
attached to fast-food premises which were clearly being used for residential
purposes. In each case, the premises operator denied that the rooms were being
used for residential purposes but the evidence indicated otherwise. Staffordshire Fire
& Rescue had attended and identified a number of significant issues which
contravened fire regulations.
RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED.
5

CHAIR/MEMBERS' QUESTIONS/ISSUES.
Responding to member queries, officers confirmed the following (responses in
brackets): Did the same regulations apply to all licensed premises? (Yes, some were
purpose-built for accommodation, some clearly were not.)
 Were there any specific regulations regarding minors being present in
licensed premises? (This depended on the license. Specific conditions could
be imposed. The Council had a Safeguarding Policy, matters could be
referred to the Staffs County Council Safeguarding Referral Unit.)
 Were all licensed drivers up to date on safeguarding? (Yes, licenses were
renewed every 12 months and safeguarding training was included in the
renewal process.)
 What were the most common problems experienced during licensing
inspections? (Mostly fire-related, with a lack of Risk Assessments having
been carried out, lack of staff training etc. Problems were also seen with
Refusals books.)
 Was there an excessive number of TENs being issued? (No. There were
‘spikes’ at certain times of year and persons were limited to 15 TENs per
year. TENs were only refused if representations had been received regarding
previous applications.)
 What requirements were required of Licensees? (The summary of the Licence
had to be displayed on the premises – their name had to be displayed at the
entrance. Licence conditions had to be on site to be produced if requested.
They did not have to be on site all the time but should be in day-to-day control
of the premises.)

Page 4
2

Licensing & Regulatory Committee - 28 June 2019
6

DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 29 NOVEMBER 2019
The meeting closed at 10.35 am

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date

Page 5
3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Licensing & Regulatory Committee
29 November 2019

TITLE:

The Air Quality (Taxi and Private Hire
Vehicles Database)(England and Wales)
Regulations 2019

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Cllr Bowen - Portfolio Holder for
Communities

CONTACT OFFICER:

Alicia Patterson - Head of Environmental
Health

WARDS INVOLVED:

All

Appendix A – The Air Quality (Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles Database)
England and Wales) Regulations 2019
Appendix B – Statutory Guidance
Appendix C – Memorandum of Understanding
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

To inform Members of a new statutory requirement being placed on all Local
Authorities to submit information to the Department for Environment, Food and
Rural Affairs (DEFRA) for the purposes of maintaining a database in relation to
all Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles licensed by them.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

To note the new statutory provisions of the Air Quality (Taxi and Private Hire
Vehicles Database) (England and Wales) Regulations 2019, and associated
statutory guidance.

2.2

That delegated authority is granted to the Head of Environmental Health to
sign the memorandum of understanding and submit the required data.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Air Quality (Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles Database) (England and
Wales) regulations 2019 (“the regulations”) came into force on 1st May 2019.
The purpose of the Regulations is to place a statutory duty on all Licensing
Authorities in England and Wales to submit specific data to DEFRA on a

Page 7

regular basis for the purpose of creating and maintaining a national database
of all licensed vehicles. A copy of the Regulations is attached as Appendix A.
The data to be provided and contained in the database is:








The Vehicle Registration
The issue date of the licence
The expiry date of the licence
Whether the vehicle is a taxi (Hackney Carriage) or a Private Hire
Vehicle (PHV)
The name of the issuing Authority
The licence number
Whether the vehicle is Wheelchair Accessible

3.2

On 18th July 2019 DEFRA published statutory guidance (the guidance)
to assist licensing authorities in implementing the Regulations. It provides
details of the data that the council will be required to submit to DEFRA and
advice on how the data will be managed in compliance with Data Protection
legislation, The Background for DEFRA creating the database is contained
with the guidance. A copy of the guidance is attached as Appendix B.

3.3

The guidance suggests that the database should be ready for local authorities
to start submitting data before the end of October 2019; however DEFRA’s
preferred method of data transfer, via a fully integrated API, is unlikely to be
ready before the end of 2019. DEFRA have produced a draft technical
specifications document to data transfer which has been forward to the
Councils IT department for comment.

4.

Options

4.1

That members note the new statutory provisions of the Air Quality (Taxi and
Private Hire vehicles Database) (England and Wales) Regulations 2019, and
associated Statutory Guidance) in addition the requirement it places on the
Authority as a statutory duty to submit the specified data to DEFRA on a
regular basis for the purpose of creating and maintaining a national database
of all licensed vehicles.

4.2

That delegated authority is granted to the Head of Environmental Health to
sign the memorandum of understanding and submit the data as and when
required by DEFRA.

5.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

5.1

Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner Staffordshire
Moorlands.

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety – (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

Page 8

The appropriate enforcement of licensing legislation in partnership with
relevant agencies is a key tool in assuring the maintenance of community
safety.
6.2

Workforce
None arise directly from this report.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council’s Diversity and
Equality Policies.

6.4

Legal
The requirement of this legislation places a duty on the authority to comply
with the statutory requirements and relevant guidance.

6.5

Sustainability
None arise directly from this report.

6.6

Internal and External Consultation
None arise directly from this report.

6.7

Risk Assessment
None arising from the report.
Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details
Alicia Patterson
Head of Environmental Health
alicia.patterson@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 11

Page 12

Page 13

Page 14

Page 15

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

Page 23

Page 24

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Between:

Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra)
AND

[Name of licensing authority]
In respect of:

Provision of taxi and private hire vehicle licensing data as required by the Air
Quality (Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles Database) (England and Wales) Regulations
2019

DEFINITIONS
Data Protection Legislation: the GDPR, the LED, the DPA 2018 and any applicable
national implementing Laws as amended from time to time, and all applicable Law about
the processing of personal data and privacy;
Controller, Processor, Processing, Data Subject, Personal Data, Special Categories
of Personal Data, Personal Data Breach, Data Protection Officer take the meaning
given in the GDPR.
Data Loss Event: any event that results, or may result, in unauthorised access to
Personal Data held by either party under this MoU, and/or actual or potential loss and/or
destruction of Personal Data in breach of this MoU, including any Personal Data Breach.
Data Subject Access Request: a request made by, or on behalf of, a Data Subject in
accordance with rights granted pursuant to the Data Protection Legislation to access their
Personal Data.

Page 25

1

DPA 2018: Data Protection Act 2018
GDPR: the General Data Protection Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/679)
LED: Law Enforcement Directive (Directive (EU) 2016/680)
Protective Measures: appropriate technical and organisational measures which may
include: pseudonymising and encrypting Personal Data, ensuring confidentiality, integrity,
availability and resilience of systems and services, ensuring that availability of and access
to Personal Data can be restored in a timely manner after an incident, and regularly
assessing and evaluating the effectiveness of the such measures adopted by it.
Sub-processor: any third Party appointed to process Personal Data on behalf of the
Contractor related to this Agreement.
Licensing Authority: the licensing authority who is party to this agreement, [INSERT
NAME OF LICENSING AUTHORITY]
Air Quality Regulations: the Air Quality (Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles Database)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2019

1. Parties to this Memorandum of Understanding
1.1. The Parties to this Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) are the Department
of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) and the Licensing Authority.

2. Purpose of this MoU
2.1. The Purpose of this MoU is to clarify how the Parties will meet their respective
obligations under Data Protection Legislation in relation to the processing of
Personal Data as necessary to meet the requirements of the Air Quality
Regulations. It explains how the parties will co-operate to ensure compliance
with all relevant legislation.
3. Description of the Data and method of sharing
3.1. The Air Quality Regulations specify the data that The Licensing Authority is
required to share with Defra – the Data
3.2. The Air Quality Regulations specify the minimum frequency at which the Data
must be shared with Defra. The Data must be transmitted to Defra at least
once a week and additionally as requested for database development and
testing purposes.
3.3. The Licensing Authority will transfer the Data to Defra using either an
Application Programming Interface (API) or a CSV upload. In executing the
transfer, both parties will comply with the security arrangements described in
clause 9.

Page 26

2

4. The Licensing Authority’s legal basis under the GDPR for sharing the Data
with Defra
4.1. Article 6.1(e) of the GDPR legitimises the processing of personal data that is
necessary for compliance with a legal obligation to which the controller is
subject.
4.2. The Licensing Authority as a Controller is subject to a legal obligation to
provide the Data to Defra, and therefore such processing as is necessary to
provide the Data is legitimised by Article 6(1)(e).
5. Accountability
5.1. Defra is a separate Controller for the Data once received from The Licensing
Authority and is responsible as a Controller for complying with Data Protection
Legislation in relation to its further processing of the Data.
6. Fairness and transparency
6.1. Both parties will provide appropriate privacy notices to data subjects, in
accordance with the requirements of the GDPR and all relevant good practice
guidance issued by the Information Commissioner’s Office. Specifically, The
Licensing Authority will inform data subjects that Licensing Authorities are
required by Law to share the Data with Defra so that Defra can create a
database to support the operation of charging clean air zones by local
authorities or other air quality plans.
7. Accuracy of shared data
7.1. The Licensing Authority will take all reasonable steps to ensure the accuracy
and currency of the Data before it is transmitted to Defra. Where the
Licensing Authority becomes aware of inaccuracies in the Data after its
transmission to Defra, it will notify Defra of those inaccuracies within one
working day of them being discovered and the parties will agree a suitable
rectification plan.
7.2. Defra will take all reasonable steps to maintain the accuracy and currency of
the Data, and will notify The Licensing Authority if it becomes aware of any
significant inaccuracies.
8. Retention of shared data
8.1. Defra will retain the Data for a period not exceeding seven years for revenue
purposes from the date received from The Licensing Authority subject to any
relevant exemptions under Data Protection Legislation. Aggregated data may
be retained for historic scientific analysis. Aggregated data means information
which has been collated for monthly reports. Historical aggregated data will be
retained indefinitely for scientific purposes.
8.2. At the end of that retention period, Defra will arrange for the secure
destruction or deletion of the Data, in accordance with clause 12.

Page 27

3

9. Data security
9.1. The Licensing Authority will ensure the safe transmission of the Data to Defra,
in accordance with the security requirements of Data Protection Legislation
and industry good practice.
9.2. Defra will ensure that its Processing of the Data meets the requirements of
Data Protection Legislation and the HMG Security Policy Framework. These
same requirements shall apply to the use by Defra of any Processor.
10. Data subjects rights
10.1. Each party will answer any data subject rights requests that are made to
them for Data that they are processing as a Controller, in accordance with
their obligations under the GDPR.
11. Freedom of Information (FOI) requests.
11.1. Each party will answer any FOI requests that they receive for information
about: the Data for which they are the Controller; the Air Quality Regulations;
or this MoU.
11.2. The party who has received the request will consult the other party where
disclosure of information could impact on the interest of the other party.
11.3. The party who has received the request will take into account the views of
the other party before deciding whether or not to disclose the information.
Specifically, they will:
11.4. Allow the other party a period of at least 5 working days to respond to the
consultation;
11.5. Not disclose any personal data that would breach Data Protection
Legislation; and
11.6. Not disclose information that would prejudice either the security of the Data
or the security arrangements of the other party.
12. Audit and inspection
12.1. Defra reserves the right to carry out a review of The Licensing Authority’s
compliance with the terms of this MoU, and The Licensing Authority agrees
to cooperate fully with any such review. Defra will give 28 days’ notice of
such a review.
12.2. Defra will share with The Licensing Authority the outcome of any audits or
reviews that have been carried out on its activities as a Controller, to the
extent that they have relevance to the processing of the Data received from
The Licensing Authority.

Page 28

4

12.3. Defra will notify The Licensing Authority of any audits that are being carried
out by the Information Commissioner’s Office under Data Protection
Legislation, to the extent they have relevance to the processing of the Data
received from The Licensing Authority.
13. Data loss event
13.1. In relation to Data received from The Licensing Authority, Defra
(dpo@defra.gov.uk) will notify The Licensing Authority immediately of any
serious Data Loss Event that meets the threshold for notification to the
Information Commissioner’s Office or affected Data Subjects. Such
notification will be to a contact nominated by the Licensing Authority. Less
serious incidents will be reported on a monthly basis.
14. Agreement and signatories
14.1. The parties will review the terms of this MoU on an annual basis, or sooner if
necessary to reflect a material change to any of the provisions in this MoU.
14.2. The parties enter into this MoU intending to honour its provisions, but the
MoU does not constitute a legally binding contract and it does not affect the
obligations that each party has under the legislation referred to in this MoU.

Signed on behalf of:

Defra

Name of licensing authority

…………………………………

…………………………………………

[name and position]

[name and position]

Date
…………………………………….

Date
……………………………………..

Page 29

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Licensing & Regulatory Committee
29 November 2019

TITLE:

Intoxicated Campaign

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Bowen - Portfolio Holder for
Communities

CONTACT OFFICER:

Alicia Patterson - Head of Environmental
Health

WARDS INVOLVED:

All Wards

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

To update the Committee on the launch of the Intoxicated Campaign.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the Committee notes the contents of the report.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Intoxicated Campaign was first launched in “B” division by the Derbyshire
Police Licensing Unit, a number of years ago. The aim was to give the
Intoxicated Campaign an instantly recognisable, high-profile identify, with the
simple message for both staff and customers alike, that anyone approaching
the bar in a drunken state would not be served alcohol.

3.2

Alcohol related harm/violence has been and still remains a priority risk area. It
has been well established that the vast majority of alcohol related incidents
occur after the hours of 8pm and are more prevalent over the weekend period.
The campaign will focus on the following areas:




Develop the awareness of licensed premises staff of their legal
requirement to encourage responsible drinking.
Educate drinkers, particularly the young and those yet to reach legal
drinking age about the dangers and legal implications of excessive
drinking.
Ensure that police Officer refresh their knowledge of licensing matters
and their powers, in order to support the initiative.

Page 31

3.3

The Head of Environmental Health will present the promotional information for
the campaign at the meeting.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

To help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live
and work.

5.

Alternative Options

5.1

There are no alternative options to consider.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
The appropriate enforcement of licensing Legislation and
promotion in partnership with relevant agencies is a key tool in
assuring the maintenance of community safety.

6.2

Workforce
None arise directly from this report.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations
The Campaign has been funded through the Community Safety
Partnership.

6.5

Legal
No legal obligations associated with this report

6.6

Sustainability
None arising directly from this report.

6.7

Internal and External Consultation
None arising directly from this report.

Page 32

6.8

Risk Assessment
None arising from this report.

Mr Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer
Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details
Alicia Patterson
Head of Environmental Health
alicia.patterson@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report to Licensing and Regulatory Committee
29th November 2019

TITLE:

Polling District and Polling Places Review

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Tony Hall – Customer Services

CONTACT OFFICER:

Marion Hancock – Senior Elections Officer

WARDS INVOLVED:

All wards

Appendices Attached:

Appendix A – comments received no – changes
proposed
Appendix B – comments received - changes
proposed

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

To review the polling districts and voting arrangements in the District of
Staffordshire Moorlands and report on the findings.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That the existing arrangements for voting continue with no changes in the
Wards of Alton, Bagnall and Stanley, Biddulph East, Biddulph Moor, Biddulph
North, Biddulph South, Biddulph West, Brown Edge and Endon, Caverswall,
Checkley, Cheddleton, Churnet, Dane, Hamps Valley, Horton, Ipstones, Leek
East, Leek South, Leek West, Manifold and Werrington.

2.2

That, following consideration of all the issues raised, the existing
arrangements for voting continue for Cellarhead, Cheadle North East, Cheadle
West and Leek North as detailed in Appendix A.

2.3

That, following consideration of all the issues raised, the existing
arrangements for voting in the Cheadle South East Ward at South Moorlands
Leisure Centre be moved to The Sports Pavilion, Thorley Drive, Cheadle; and
that the existing arrangements for voting in the Forsbrook Ward at William
Amory Primary School be moved to Blythe Bridge and Forsbrook Village Hall
as detailed in Appendix B.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

Since the last polling district review, each polling station in the District has

Page 35

been reviewed to establish their continued suitability as a polling station.
3.2

Information gathered by Polling Station staff, Presiding Officers, Poll Clerks
and Polling Station Inspectors over this year’s elections has been reviewed
together with consultation from other stakeholders.

3.3

The Acting Returning Officer, Simon Baker has been consulted. His findings
are included in the appendices.

3.4

Any changes that are recommended and approved will come into force for the
next scheduled elections, the Police and Crime Commissioner Elections, on
Thursday 7th May 2020.

4.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

4.1

The recommendations in this report will support the corporate aim of
ensuring our services are easily available to all our residents.

5.

Alternative Options

5.1

Polling places and stations are reviewed as part of the Council’s normal
election processes which means that the majority of polling stations are
suitable.

5.2

Comments have been received regarding space, access and parking
arrangements for a few stations. Comments received regarding the use of any
alternative venue have been investigated. The Deputy Returning Officer’s
findings and any comments are set out in Ward order in Appendix A.

5.3

Where comments have been received and changes are recommended, the
Deputy Returning Officer’s comments are set out in Ward order in
Appendix B.

6.

Implications
6.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
No implications.

6.2

Workforce
No implications.

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council’s
Diversity and Equality Policies.

6.4

Financial Considerations

Page 36

None directly.
6.5

Legal
As referred to within the report.

6.6

Sustainability
No implications.

6.7

Consultation
Undertaken with members of the public, MP, Members, County
Councillors, Parish Councils and other stakeholders. Where any
changes are proposed to the location of polling stations the
relevant Ward Councillors have been consulted.

6.8

Risk Assessment
As referred to within the report.
Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers
Appendices attached

Contact details
Marion Hancock
Marion.hancock@highp
eak.gov.uk

7.

Detail

7.1

The Electoral Administration Act 2006 introduced a duty for all polling districts
and polling places to be reviewed every four years. The next compulsory
review must be started and completed between 1st October 2018 and 31st
January 2020. The Council must carry out a full review of the arrangements
under which its area is divided into polling districts and by which polling places
are provided within these districts. The review covers both the whole area
governed by the District Council and any parliamentary constituencies that
come within it. In between full reviews, a review must also be undertaken
when a change in a particular polling place is proposed to be made.

7.2

The relevant legislation is contained in sections 18 and 31 of the
Representation of the People Act 1983 and the Review of Polling Districts and
Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006. Guidance on the
conduct of reviews is published by the Electoral Commission.
Definitions

Page 37

“Parliamentary constituency”. The subject of this review is the division of the
district and the parliamentary constituency into polling districts and the
provision of polling places; the actual constituency boundaries cannot be
changed by this review.
“Polling district”. This is the area created by the division of the constituency or
local government electoral area, such as a ward. The District Council is
responsible for deciding the boundaries of polling districts. In England, each
parish must be a separate polling district, although larger parishes can be
divided into two or more districts. A parish must not be in a polling district
which has a part of different parish within it, or any un-parished part of the
local authority area within it.
“Polling place”. This is the building or area in which the Returning Officer will
locate polling stations.
“Polling station”. This is the actual area where the process of voting takes
place. This must be located within the polling place and designated for the
particular polling district. This function of identifying a polling station is the
responsibility of the Returning Officer.
7.3

As a result of the consultation process the Council has received the following
representations:


Ipstones Parish Council – existing polling places are suitable, happy
with the current arrangements.



Dane Ward Councillor– happy with current arrangements.



Grindon Parish Council – happy with current arrangement as the
building has been refurbished with improved access and improved
accessible toilet facilities.



Waterhouses Parish Council – happy with current arrangements.



Leek East Ward Councillor – comments received on warding
arrangements.



Comment received regarding the use of the Old Grammar School
(Scout Hall) Clerk Bank Leek and parking arrangements, with a
suggested alternative of The Fowlowe, Stockwell Street, Leek. Electoral
Services have investigated this suggestion, unfortunately the room is
not available for use when required.



Comments received regarding the use of William Amory Primary School
when other suitable community buildings available. Electoral Services
have investigated The Methodist Church Hall, Uttoxeter Road, St
Peter’s Church Hall, Blythe Bridge Library and Blythe Bridge and
Forsbrook Village Hall as suitable alternative venues.



Comments received regarding the use of South Moorlands Leisure

Page 38

Centre and the extreme noise coming from the gym and spinning
classes during the day and evening. Thorley Drive pavilion has been
investigated as a suitable alternative venue.


7.4

Comments received regarding access and parking arrangements from
Bishop Rawle School, Painsley Sixth Form College, Brough Park
Leisure Centre and Werrington Primary School have all been
investigated with the issues raised resolved.

Analysis of all the representations received, together with details of the
recommendations following the analysis, are contained in Appendices A and B
attached to the report. Where changes are proposed to the current
arrangements, details of those changes are provided in Appendix B and form
the basis of the proposed resolution of the Committee at 2.3 above.

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
POLLING DISTRICT REVIEW
CELLARHEAD WARD
REPORT
Polling Stations

Werrington Primary School, Washerwall Lane, Werrington
Moorside High School, Cellarhead Road, Werrington

Serving Polling Districts

DD, IB

Number of Polling
Stations

3

Number of voters

2638 (Total)

Physical Accessibility

DD (1812), IB (809)
Werrington Primary School - Off street car parking is available
with disabled access
Moorside High School - Off road and disabled parking available.

Adequacy of facilities for
staff

All facilities are satisfactory.

Is the location convenient Both polling places are in the centre of the concentrated
to voters
population within the polling district.
Any recent major
development

No

Any proposed
development

No

Alternatives

None

Comments received as
part of Consultation
process

Concerns were raised regarding access arrangements to the
polling station at Werrington Primary School

Presiding Officer or
Polling Station
Supervisor comments

Access concerns regarding small step into the hall causing a trip
hazard at Werrington Primary School

Page 41

DRO comments

Move voting to the Nursery building at Werrington Primary
School access on the level

Proposals for Change

Move voting to the Nursery building at Werrington Primary
School access on the level

Reasons for Change

Comments received regarding small step into the hall causing a
tripping hazard

Page 42

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
POLLING DISTRICT REVIEW
CHEADLE NORTH EAST WARD
REPORT
Polling Stations

Daisy Bank House Business Centre, 17-19 Leek Road, Cheadle,

Serving Polling Districts

Cheadle North East - EC

Number of Polling
Stations

2

Number of voters

2841 (Total)

Physical Accessibility

Daisy Bank House Business Centre - adequate parking small number of
parking spaces in the car park. Off road parking available. Disabled
access at the side door

Adequacy of facilities for
staff

All facilities are satisfactory.

Is the location convenient The polling place is situated on the outskirts of the ward and polling
district but no other suitable alternative available
to voters
Any recent major
development

No

Any proposed
development

No

Alternatives

None available

Comments received as
part of Consultation
process

None

Presiding Officer or
Polling Station
Supervisor comments

Polling station on the small side but amended layout of the polling
station will allow voting for electors

DRO comments

Polling station layout amended to accommodate voting for all electors

Proposals for Change

None

Reasons for Change

None

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
POLLING DISTRICT REVIEW
CHEADLE WEST WARD
REPORT
Polling Stations

Painsley Sixth Form College, Attlee Road, Cheadle
Bishop Rawle Primary School, Royal Walk, Cheadle

Serving Polling Districts

E-E, ED

Number of Polling
Stations

4

Number of voters

4121 (Total)

Physical Accessibility

E-E (3128), ED (943)
Painsley Sixth Form College – Adequate parking on school car
park available
Bishop Rawle Primary School – Car park available. Disabled access
available through the gate at the rear of the polling station

Adequacy of facilities for
staff

All facilities are satisfactory.

Is the location convenient Both polling places are in the centre of the concentrated
to voters
population within the polling district.
Any recent major
development

No

Any proposed
development

No

Alternatives

None

Comments received as
part of Consultation
process

None

DRO comments

Spaces to be made available on the school car park on Election
Days for electors at Painsley Sixth Form College
A wider access will be made available at the back entrance to the
polling station at Bishop Rawle Primary School if required

Page 45

Proposals for Change

None

Reasons for Change

None

Page 46

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
POLLING DISTRICT REVIEW
LEEK NORTH WARD
REPORT
Polling Stations
Serving Polling Districts

Beresford Memorial School. Novi Lane, Leek
Brough Park Leisure Centre, Fowlchurch Road, Leek
The Old Grammar School, 1A Clerk Bank, Leek
DDD, EEE, MMM

Number of Polling
Stations

4

Number of voters

4066 (total)

Physical Accessibility

DDD (2085), EEE (1319), MMM (828)
Beresford Memorial School - Off road and disabled parking.
Disabled access through the main entrance
Brough Park Leisure Centre – Car park and off road and
disabled parking. Level entrance.
The Old Grammar School – Car park and off road parking.
Small step with a ramp to the front of the building

Adequacy of facilities for
staff

All facilities are satisfactory.

Is the location convenient All three polling places are in the centre of the concentrated
to voters
population within the polling district.
Any recent major
development

No

Any proposed
development

No

Alternatives

N/a

Comments received as
part of Consultation
process

Comments received regarding the use of Beresford
Memorial School with request to move to St Pauls
Community Centre. Electoral Services have investigated the
use of St Paul Community Centre, unfortunately this building

Page 47

Presiding Officer or
Polling Station
Supervisor comments

is not available to book as it has regular bookings each day
of the week that cannot be cancelled.
Comment received regarding the use of The Old Grammar
School with request to move to The Foxlowe Arts Centre.
Electoral Services have investigated the use of The Foxlowe
Arts Centre, unfortunately this building is not available to
book as it has a regular booking when it would be required
for use.
Comments received regarding the access at Brough Park
Leisure Centre these have now been resolved
None

DRO comments

N/A

Proposals for Change

None

Reasons for Change

None

Page 48

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
POLLING DISTRICT REVIEW
CHEADLE SOUTH EAST WARD
REPORT
Polling Stations
Serving Polling Districts

Freehay Village Hall, Freeyhay
South Moorlands Leisure Centre, Allen Street, Cheadle
Cheadle Cricket Club, Tean Road, Cheadle
EA, EBA, EBB

Number of Polling
Stations

3

Number of voters

2980 (Total)

Physical Accessibility

EA(167), EBA (1412), EBB (1401)
Freehay Village Hall – Adequate parking
South Moorlands Leisure Centre – Car park and disabled parking
Cheadle Cricket Club – Adequate parking

Adequacy of facilities for
staff

All facilities are satisfactory.

Is the location convenient All three polling places are in the centre of the concentrated population
within the polling district.
to voters
Any recent major
development

No

Any proposed
development

No

Alternatives

South Moorlands Leisure Centre to move to Thorley Drive Sports
Pavilion Thorley Drive Cheadle ST10 1SA

Comments received as
part of Consultation
process

South Moorlands Leisure Centre very noisy. Music on all day in the gym
and spinning classes taking place during the day

Presiding Officer or
Polling Station
Supervisor comments

Room very noisy

Page 49

DRO comments

Move voting from South Moorlands Leisure Centre to Thorley Drive
Sports Pavilion Thorley Drive Cheadle ST10 1SA

Proposals for Change

Move voting from South Moorlands Leisure Centre to Thorley Drive
Sports Pavilion Thorley Drive Cheadle ST10 1SA

Reasons for Change

South Moorlands Leisure Centre very noisy. Music on all day in the gym
and spinning classes taking place during the day

Page 50

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
POLLING DISTRICT REVIEW
FORSBROOK WARD
REPORT
Polling Stations
Serving Polling Districts

Forsbrook Methodist Church, Chapel Street, Forsbrook
The William Amory Primary School, Stallington Road, Blythe
Bridge
NA, NB

Number of Polling
Stations

4

Number of voters

4215 (Total)

Physical Accessibility

NA (1332), NB (2883)
Forsbrook Methodist Church – Adequate parking
The William Amory Primary School - Off street parking
available. Access for disabled users on ground floor via side
entrance.

Adequacy of facilities for
staff

All facilities are satisfactory.

Is the location convenient Both polling places are in the centre of the concentrated
to voters
population within the polling district.
Any recent major
development

No

Any proposed
development

No

Alternatives

Alternatives suggested;
- Methodist Church Uttoxeter Road
- Blythe Bridge and Forsbrook Village Hall
- Blythe Bridge Library
- St Peter’s Church Hall

Comments received as
part of Consultation
process

The necessity of closing The William Amory Primary School
on voting days when there are community buildings in the
area. Suggested alternatives Methodist Church
Blythe Bridge and Forsbrook Village Hall

Page 51

Presiding Officer or
Polling Station
Supervisor comments
DRO comments

Proposals for Change

Blythe Bridge Library
St Peter’s Church Hall
None

Methodist Church – very poor access with limited car
parking available
Blythe Bridge Library – not suitable for voting
St Peter’s Church Hall – small step into the hall and no
guarantee that the room will be available as required
After investigating the suggested locations it is proposed to
move voting to
Blythe Bridge and Forsbrook Village Hall. The Village Hall
has good parking facilities with good access on the level and
good facilities for staff. The Hall has a sufficient room to
accommodate the electorate and three polling stations

Reasons for Change

The necessity of closing The William Amory Primary School
on polling day

Page 52

Agenda Item 8
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL
Licensing & Regulatory Committee
29 November 2019

TITLE:

Licensing Enforcement Activity

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

Councillor Bowen - Portfolio Holder for
Communities

CONTACT OFFICER:

Alicia Patterson - Head of Environmental
Health

WARDS INVOLVED:

(All Wards)

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

To update the members on the recent enforcement activity carried out by the
Licensing section.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the Committee notes the content of the report.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

In the period February 2019 to July 2019 the Licensing Service has engaged
in a number of enforcement actions. These activities have involved reactive
responses to complaints and intelligence received from the public and partner
agencies as well as proactive compliance checks.

3.2

Officers will seek to encourage licence holders to conduct their activity in a
safe manner, maintain good standards and to comply with the law. Officers
have to exercise considerable discretion when approaching individual licence
holders. Licensees are in our experience anxious to comply with the law and
for such cases the officer's role will be to provide guidance and advice.
However, in carrying out their functions officers are authorised with a wide
range of powers and may, for example, require entry at all reasonable times or
require the production of certain documents.

3.3

If officers find evidence the law is being broken and enforcement
is required they can respond in various ways. They may instruct or warn by
letter, revoke or suspend a licence and, where the circumstances warrant it,

Page 53

they will formally caution or prosecute without prior warnings and without
recourse to alternative sanctions. Officers will have due regard to the relevant
enforcement policies when determining the most appropriate course of action.
3.4

The details of the enforcement and other activities carried out during this
period are as set out below:
Frequency
40
32
8 Granted
2 Rejected
6 Granted
1 Rejected
3 Granted
1 In Progress
77
21
1
8
4

3.5

Enforcement Activity
Letters to Taxi Drivers for Renewals
Letters to Taxi Drivers regarding Safeguarding
House to House Collections
Street Collection Permits Issues
Road Closures (From 30th September)
Temporary Event Notices Issued with Alcohol
Late Temporary Event Notices issued with Alcohol
Late Temporary Event Notice issued without Alcohol
Licensing Officer & Police Joint Visits
Licensing Officer, Fire & Rescue joint visits

The primary focus of enforcement work to date has been on ensuring that the
law in relation to all relevant licensing legislation and guidance is properly
observed. In considering the focus of this activity the Licensing Service has
had reference to:



Those premises/vehicles against which complaints have been received.
Those premises who do not hold a licence but where intelligence suggests
licensable activity is taking place.

3.6

A variety of breaches were identified in the course of these activities but were
addressed by a voluntary change of behaviour on the part of the licence
holder or via specific action by the Licensing Service and partners. In none of
the cases was further legal action or the application of criminal sanction
necessary.

3.7

During this period no complaints have been received relating to smoking on
licensed premises.


As part of the (Health Act 2006) and associated Regulations premises
have to comply with signage requirements. All premises visited are now
compliant with displaying the required signage.
 No fixed penalty tickets in relation to offences of witnessed or reported
smoking in premises have been issued.

Page 54

4.

Implications

4.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
The appropriate enforcement of licensing legislation in partnership
with relevant agencies is a key tool in assuring the maintenance of
community safety.
4.2

Workforce
None arise directly from this report.

4.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.
4.4 Financial Considerations
The discharge of inspection and enforcement functions have been
factored into previous budget calculations.
4.5 Legal
The requirements of the various licensing legislation places a duty
on license holders under the criminal law. In enforcing the
conditions relating to this legislation the Licensing Service has
powers to undertake prosecutions relevant to the offences
identified.
4.6 Sustainability
None arise directly from this report.
4.7 Internal and External Consultation
None arise directly from this report.
4.8 Risk Assessment
None arising from the report.
Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer
Contact Details
Alicia Patterson
Head of Environmental Health
alicia.patterson@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

